

Proposed ORDINANCE
of the
City of Minneapolis

By Biernat

91.20. Street permits. The director of inspections, before issuing any permit for the use or occupancy of any portion of any street, shall require the payment by the applicant for such permit, in the manner herein provided, of a fee in the amount of ~~forty-three dollars (\$43.00)~~ forty-four dollars (\$44.00) for the first fifty (50) lineal feet, or fraction thereof, of such use or occupancy, and for each additional fifty (50) feet, or fraction thereof, ~~twenty-one dollars and fifty cents (\$21.50)~~ twenty-two dollars (\$22.00) shall be added to the above prescribed fee for such permit. Notwithstanding the aforementioned fees as set out in this section, the fee for placing a proper building refuse container (dumpster) on the street, to be used to store refuse from a building project on a one- or two-family dwelling, shall be ~~fourteen dollars and fifty cents (\$14.50)~~ fifteen dollars (\$15.00). (Code 1960, As Amend., § 200.020; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 2; 78-Or-257, § 1, 12-22-78; 88-Or-033, § 1, 3-4-88; 92-Or-158, § 1, 11-20-92)

91.30. Reserved.

Editor's note--85-Or-209, adopted Nov. 15, 1985, repealed § 91.30, which set out the fees for copies of documents, as derived from Code 1960, § 200.030, and § 3 of an ordinance of Sept. 27, 1974. See § 14.110 for current copying fees.

91.40. Minimum fee. In no case shall the fee charged for any permit issued by the director of inspections be less than ~~thirty-five dollars (\$35.00)~~ thirty-six dollars (\$36.00) for any work to be done and for which a permit is required. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 200.040; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 4; Ord. of 2-13-76, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 2, 12-22-78; 79-Or-006, § 1, 1-12-79; 80-Or-027, § 1, 2-29-80; 81-Or-251, § 2, 10-9-81; 88-Or-033, § 2, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 1, 2-10-95)

91.45. Reserved.

Editor's note--Section 3 of 78-Or-257, adopted Dec. 22, 1978, repealed former § 91.45, providing for a surcharge on permit fees of \$15.00 or more under this chapter and derived from 76-Or-243, § 1, adopted Dec. 30, 1976.

91.70. Unit based permit fee surcharge. Permit fees calculated on a unit item basis, as shown in sections 91.150, 91.190, 91.210, 91.220, 91.260, 91.270, 91.280, 91.320, 91.330, 91.380, 91.410, 91.420, 91.465, 91.570, 91.680, 91.685, 91.690, 91.700, 91.710, 91.810, 91.820, and 91.830, shall be subject to a surcharge based on annual increases in the construction cost index (CCI) as published quarterly by the Engineering News Record. Such surcharge shall be effective on April first of each year based on the construction cost index for the period ending December 31 of the preceding calendar year.

For purposes of determining the surcharge, the fees stated in those sections above shall be first adjusted April 1, 1996, on the basis that no CCI adjustment was required prior to January 1, 1995. Such surcharge will be rounded off to the nearest one percent. (90-Or-070, § 2, 3-16-90; 95-Or-016, § 4, 2-10-95)

ARTICLE II. BUILDING PERMIT FEES

91.90. Required generally. The director of inspections before issuing any permit for the erection of any building or structure, or for any addition to any existing building or structure or for any alterations or repairs to any existing building or structure, upon application therefor, shall require the payment by the applicant for such permit of fees in the amounts herein set forth.

Building valuation for the purpose of establishing building permit fees shall be as set forth by the valuation data published by the Building Code Division, Department of Administration, State of Minnesota, as may be amended from time to time, or the applicant's estimated value, including all labor and materials, whichever greater. The valuation to be used in computing the permit and plan-check fees shall be the total value contract price of all construction work for which the permit is issued, as well as all finish work, painting, roofing, electrical, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, elevators, fire-extinguishing systems and any other permanent work or permanent equipment. Nothing in this method of determining valuation for building permit fees shall be construed as supplementing or decreasing the fees for other permits required by this Code.

TABLE INSET:

Total Valuation Fee

| TOTAL VALUATION | FEE |
|-------------------------------|--|
| \$1.00 - \$500.00 | \$23.50 <u>24.00</u> |
| \$501.00 - \$2,000.00 | \$23.50 <u>24.00</u> – first \$500. Plus \$3.05 <u>3.25</u> per \$100. And fraction thereof including \$2000. |
| \$2001.00 - \$25,000.00 | \$69.25 <u>72.75</u> – first \$2000. Plus \$14.00 <u>14.25</u> per \$1000. And fraction thereof including \$25,000. |
| \$25,001.00 - \$50,000.00 | \$391.25 <u>400.50</u> – first \$25,000. Plus \$40.10 <u>10.30</u> per \$1000. And fraction thereof including \$50,000. |
| \$50,000.00 - \$100,000.00 | \$643.75 <u>658.00</u> – first \$50,000. Plus \$7.00 <u>7.25</u> per \$1000. And fraction thereof including \$100,000. |
| \$100,001.00 - \$500,000.00 | \$993.75 <u>1020.50</u> – first \$100,000. Plus \$5.60 <u>5.75</u> per \$1000. And fraction thereof including \$500,000. |
| \$500,001.00 - \$1,000,000.00 | \$3,233.75 <u>3320.50</u> – first \$500,000. Plus \$4.75 <u>5.00</u> per \$1000. And fraction thereof including \$1,000,000. |
| \$1,000,001.00 and up | \$5,608.75 <u>5820.50</u> – first \$1,000,000. Plus \$3.65 <u>3.75</u> per \$1,000. And fraction thereof |

(Code 1960, As Amend., § 201.010; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 1; Ord. of 3-27-75, § 2; 78-Or-257, § 4, 12-22-78; 79-Or-006, § 2, 1-12-79; 87-Or-165, § 1, 9-11-87; 88-Or-033, § 4, 3-4-88; 89-Or-216, § 1, 11-9-89; 90-Or-070, § 3, 3-16-90; 95-Or-016, § 5, 2-10-95; 95-Or-043, § 1, 3-31-95; 2000-Or-126, § 1, 12-15-00)

91.105. Special inspection fees. The fee for special inspections ~~to be performed during hours other than the normal working hours established by the director of inspections~~ shall require the payment of the following fee: Fifty dollars (\$50.00) per hour or any fraction thereof for all such inspection time with a minimum fee of one hundred dollars (\$100.00), such fees to be paid to the city treasurer by the contractor, building owner or agent, or any other person requesting the special inspection. (81-Or-147, § 1, 6-12-81; 88-Or-033, § 5, 3-4-88)

ARTICLE III. ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEES

91.150. Fee schedule. Electrical fees shall be paid according to the following schedule:

(1) The minimum fee for each separate installation, replacement, alteration or repair as set out in the state building code shall be . . . ~~\$35.00~~ 36.00

(2) Services, changes of services, temporary services, additions, alterations or repairs on either primary or secondary services . . . ~~40.00~~ 50.00

(3) Circuits, installations of, additions, alterations or repairs of each circuit or subfeeder shall be computed separately including circuits fed from subfeeders and including the equipment served. Further, when a service is installed, each new or existing branch circuit or feeder circuit connected to the service panelboard(s) or switchboard(s) shall be included . . . ~~7.00~~ 8.75

(4) For each permit for wiring, installing and connecting transformers, capacitors or generators used for lighting, heat or power or other apparatus rated in watts, kilovolt amperes or kilovolt amperes reactive:

For each kilovolt ampere or kilovolt ampere reactive capacity, or fraction thereof there shall be a fee of . . . ~~0.50~~ .65

(5) For each sign or outline lighting installation . . . ~~25.00~~ 31.25

(6) For installation of low voltage systems of less than 50 volts . . . ~~30.00~~ 37.50
Plus, for each opening . . . ~~\$4.00~~ 1.25

(7) For inspection of transient projects, including but not limited to carnivals and circuses, the inspection fees shall be computed based on the time required for inspection at the hourly rate specified in section 91.105.

Power supply units, as required by this section. A like fee will be required on power supply units at each engagement during the season.

(8) Electrical construction work. The fee for electrical construction work directly related to and necessary for a complete electrical installation and for which a permit fee has not been assessed, shall be computed based on the time required for inspection at the hourly rate specified in section 91.105.

(Code 1960, As Amend., § 202.020; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 2; Ord. of 12-30-75, § 1; Ord. of 2-13-76, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 6, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 5, 10-9-81; 81-Or-263, § 1, 10-30-81; 83-Or-108, § 2, 5-13-83; 85-Or-002, § 1, 1-11-85; 86-Or-023, § 1, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 8, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 7, 2-10-95; 95-Or-043, § 2, 3-31-95)

91.155. Supplemental fees. Fees for supplemental electrical work not included in the original permit shall be computed in accordance with the fees set out in this chapter. Supplemental fees are exempt from the minimum fee requirement as called for in [section] 91.150. Supplemental permits must be obtained before the original permit to

which they pertain is finalized. (80-Or-027, § 3, 2-29-80; 83-Or-108, § 3, 5-13-83; 88-Or-033, § 9, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 8, 2-10-95)

ARTICLE IV. PLUMBING PERMIT FEES

91.190. Basic fees. (a) The fees for all plumbing permits shall be computed on the basis of the number of fixture openings, plumbing fixtures or devices provided for in such permits, and the fee for each shall be as follows:

91.190. Basic fees. (a) The fees for all plumbing permits shall be computed on the basis of the number of fixture openings, plumbing fixtures or devices provided for in such permits, and the fee for each shall be as follows

(1) Plumbing fixture installed, including waste and/or vent piping . . . ~~\$20.00~~ 25.00

(2) Plumbing fixture set only . . . ~~20.00~~ 25.00

(3) Waste and vent piping only . . . ~~20.00~~ 25.00

(4) Rainwater leader, for 10 stories or fraction thereof . . . ~~20.00~~ 25.00

(b) For the purpose of calculating fees, plumbing fixtures counts include but are not limited to lavatories, water closets, bath tubs, dishwashers, disposals, ice makers, sumps, floor drains, indirect wastes, heat exchangers, sewer ejectors, solar heat exchangers, receiving tanks, cross-connection control devices, water-treating devices, electric or steam water heaters, water storage tanks and food service equipment when connected to the water supply.

(c) Water service, supply and distribution system. The director of inspections, before issuing any permit for the installation or replacement of, or extension to any water service, water supply or water distribution pipe or system of piping in any building or structure, shall require the payment by the applicant for such permit of fees in the amount hereinafter provided:

(1) For any permit for installing a water meter or fire meter . . . ~~\$20.00~~ 25.00

(2) For any permit for installing, repairing, overhauling, or testing of reduced-pressure-zone (RPZ) backflow preventers . . . ~~20.00~~ 25.00

RPZ permits are exempt from the minimum fee requirement as called for in section 91.150.

(3) For any permit for replacing or extending water distribution piping for each one hundred (100) lineal feet or fraction thereof . . . ~~20.00~~ 25.00

(4) For any extension of the water pipe to a water-using device or fixture for which a plumbing permit is required, such plumbing permit and the fee paid shall cover the installation of both the device or fixture and the water piping for such device or fixture (subject to minimum fees, section 91.40).

(Code 1960, As Amend., § 203.020; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 2; Ord. of 12-30-75, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 7, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 7, 10-9-81; 83-Or-108, § 4, 5-13-83; 83-Or-239, § 1, 9-30-83; 86-Or-023, § 2, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 10, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 9, 2-10-95; 95-Or-043, § 3, 3-31-95)

91.220. Alterations, repairs. For each permit for the alteration or repair of existing plumbing or for other plumbing work not included above, the fee shall be ~~twenty dollars~~

~~(\$20.00) twenty-five (\$25.00)~~ for the first five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or fraction thereof of the estimated cost of such proposed work and ~~twenty dollars (\$20.00)~~ twenty-five (\$25.00) for each additional five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or fraction thereof of such estimated cost. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 203.050; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 3; Ord. of 12-30-75, § 3; 78-Or-257, § 9, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 9, 10-9-81; 83-Or-108, § 6, 5-13-83; 83-Or-239, § 2, 9-30-83; 86-Or-023, § 4, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 12, 3-4-88)

ARTICLE V. GAS FITTING PERMIT FEES

91.270. Gas burners. (a) For any permit for installing gas stoves, ranges, gas water heaters, process gas burners, gas burning devices not used in connection with a heating system, or other similar gas burning devices, the fee charged shall be as follows for each device included in such permit:

| Input | Fee |
|---|----------------------------------|
| Not exceeding 199,999 Btu . . . | \$ 35.00 <u>43.75</u> |
| 200,000 Btu but not exceeding 399,999 Btu . . . | 70.00 <u>87.50</u> |
| 400,000 Btu but not exceeding 999,999 Btu . . . | 140.00 <u>175.00</u> |
| 1,000,000 Btu but not exceeding 2,499,999 Btu . . . | 200.00 <u>250.00</u> |
| 2,500,000 Btu and over . . . | 500.00 <u>625.00</u> |

(b) Where more than one gas burner or multiple gas burners are to be installed in a single boiler, furnace or other device, they shall, for the purpose of establishing permit fees therefor, be considered as a single burner with the fee based on the combined total Btu capacity.

(c) For any permit for alterations or repairs to any existing gas burner or gas burner equipment or the installation of piping for a propane tank, or for any permit for gas piping, the fee shall be based on the valuation table contained in section 91.460.

(d) For inspection of transient projects, including, but not limited to carnivals and circuses, the inspection fees shall be computed based on the time required for inspection at the hourly rate specified in section 91.105.

(Code 1960, As Amend., § 204.030; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 3; Ord. of 12-30-75, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 11, 12-22-78; 79-Or-006, § 4, 1-12-79; 81-Or-251, § 11, 10-9-81; 83-Or-108, § 7, 5-13-83; 86-Or-023, § 6, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 14, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 13, 2-10-95; 95-Or-043, § 4, 3-31-95)

ARTICLE VI. WRECKING AND MOVING PERMIT FEES

91.320. Wrecking permit. For any permit for the wrecking of any building, or portion thereof, the fee so charged for each such building included in such permit shall be based on the cubical contents thereof and shall be at the rate of ~~four dollars (\$4.00)~~ five dollars (\$5.00) for each one thousand (1,000) cubic feet, or fraction thereof. For structures which would be impractical to cube, the wrecking permit fee shall be based on the total cost of wrecking such structure at the rate of ~~fourteen dollars and fifty~~

~~cents (\$14.50)~~ eighteen dollars and twenty-five cents (\$18.25) for each five hundred dollars (\$500.00) or fraction thereof.

Notwithstanding the provisions of section 91.40 of this Code, in no case shall the fee charged for any wrecking permit be less than ~~thirty-five dollars (\$35.00)~~ thirty-six dollars (\$36.00). (Code 1960, As Amend., § 205.020; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 1; Ord. of 1-31-75, § 2; 78-Or-257, § 13, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 13, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 8, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 16, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 15, 2-10-95)

91.330. Moving permits. (a) For holding up, raising or moving any building or structure on the same lot, the fee shall be ~~thirty-five dollars (\$35.00)~~ thirty-six dollars (\$36.00).

(b) For such permit where the cost of the proposed work exceeds five hundred dollars (\$500.00), an additional fee shall be ~~seven dollars (\$7.00)~~ eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75) for each two hundred dollars (\$200.00), or fractional part thereof, in excess of five hundred dollars (\$500.00) of the cost of the proposed work.

(c) "Minor buildings," as used in this section, shall be taken to mean accessory buildings, including, but not limited to private garages, sheds, construction shacks, etc., as shall be determined by the director of inspections.

(d) For a permit for moving any building, except a minor building as herein defined, from one location to another on private property, or to a different lot over the streets of the city, the fee shall be ~~one hundred eighty dollars (\$180.00)~~ two hundred and twenty-five dollars (\$225.00). For a permit for moving any minor building as herein defined from one lot to another over the streets of the city, the fee shall be ~~forty-eight dollars (\$48.00)~~ sixty dollars (\$60.00). The same permit fees shall apply to any building being moved through the city from a place outside the city to another location outside the city. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 205.030; 78-Or-257, § 14, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 13, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 9, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 17, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 16, 2-10-95)

ARTICLE VII. SIGN AND BILLBOARD PERMIT FEES

91.380. Sign fees established. The permit fee for off-premises advertising billboards shall be ~~five hundred dollars (\$500.00)~~ six hundred and twenty-five dollars (\$625.00). For all other signs, the permit fee for a sign shall be ~~seventy-five dollars (\$75.00)~~ ninety-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$93.75) for the first one hundred (100) square feet of area, plus ~~twenty-five dollars (\$25.00)~~ thirty-one dollars and twenty-five cents (\$31.25) for each additional fifty (50) square feet of area, or fraction thereof. An additional ~~twenty-five dollar (\$25.00)~~ thirty-one dollars and twenty-five cents (\$31.25) fee shall be required for projecting sign permits. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 206.030; Ord. of 10-12-73, § 3; 78-Or-257, § 15, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 14, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 10, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 18, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 17, 2-10-95; 95-Or-043, § 5, 3-31-95; 99-Or-028, § 1, 3-26-99)

91.410. Temporary signs. The fee for temporary signs and construction signs shall be ~~seventeen dollars (\$17.00)~~ twenty-one dollars and twenty-five cents (\$21.25) up to one hundred (100) square feet in area, and ~~twenty-four dollars (\$24.00)~~ thirty dollars (\$30.00) for such temporary and construction signs exceeding one hundred (100) square feet in area. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 206.080; Ord. of 10-12-73, § 6; Ord. of 11-9-73, § 1;

81-Or-251, § 16, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 11, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 19, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 18, 2-10-95)

91.415. Banner signs. The fee for banner signs shall be that required for a temporary sign as set out in section 91.410. Such banner signs shall be installed only by a licensed sign hanger, after obtaining a temporary sign permit from the director of inspections. The temporary sign permit for a banner sign shall have a limited expiration date of sixty (60) days and shall include all provisions set forth in section 109.370 of this Code. (81-Or-251, § 17, 10-9-81)

91.420. Alteration permits. The permit fee for making structural alterations shall be ~~twenty dollars (\$20.00)~~ twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for the first one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) of cost and ~~fourteen dollars (\$14.00)~~ seventeen dollar and fifty cents (\$17.50) for each additional one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00) of cost, or fraction thereof. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 206.090; Ord. of 10-12-73, § 6; Ord. of 11-9-73, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 16, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 18, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 12, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 20, 3-4-88)

ARTICLE VIII. HEATING, AIR CONDITIONING AND REFRIGERATION PERMIT FEES

91.460. Fees required. The director of inspections, before issuing any permit for the construction, installation, alteration, addition or repair of any furnace, boiler, heating or power plant or system, or any device or equipment connected therewith, or for any other device connected, or to be connected with any chimney or stack, or for the construction, installation, alteration, addition or repair of any air conditioning system or ventilation system or sheet metal ductwork or equipment connected therewith, shall require the payment by the applicant for such permit of the fee or fees in the amount herein provided: _____

TABLE INSET:

| Contract Price (including labor and material) | Required Heating and Air Conditioning Permit Fee |
|---|---|
| \$1.00--\$50,000.00 | 1.5% 1.53% of the total value of the work |
| \$50,001.00 and over | \$ 750.00 <u>765.00</u> plus 1.0% 1.02% of the total value of the work over \$50,000.00 |

The cost of installations, alterations, additions or repairs as used in this article shall include all labor and material supplied by the contractor. In addition, it shall include all materials supplied by other sources when these materials are normally supplied by the contractor.

The permit fee for the installation of a gas burner and its equipment for use in connection with a heating system shall be as set out in the fee table contained in section 91.280.

~~The permit fee for the testing of any space heating device by the city shall be one hundred twenty-five dollars (\$125.00). (Code 1960, As Amend., § 207.010; Ord. of 9-27-~~

~~74, § 1; Ord. of 12-30-75, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 18, 12-22-78; 80-Or-027, § 5, 2-29-80; 88-Or-033, § 21, 3-4-88; 91-Or-242, § 5, 12-6-91)~~

91.465. Refrigeration system permits. For each refrigeration system up to and including thirty-six thousand (36,000) Btu's of delivered refrigeration effect, the fee shall be ~~thirty-three dollars (\$33.00)~~ forty-one dollars and twenty-five cents (\$41.25). The fee for each additional thirty-six thousand (36,000) Btu's of delivered refrigeration effect, or any fraction thereof, shall be ~~seventeen dollars (\$17.00)~~ twenty-one dollars and twenty-five cents (\$21.25). The fee for alterations, additions and repair to existing refrigeration systems shall be based on the valuation table contained in section 91.460. (80-Or-027, § 6, 2-29-80; 88-Or-033, § 22, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 19, 2-10-95)

91.570. Electrical heating system "T" permits. The following fees shall be charged for electric heating system "T" permits:

For first 5 kilowatts . . . ~~\$20.00~~ 25.00

Each additional 10 kilowatts or fraction thereof . . . ~~44.00~~ 13.75

In addition to the electric heating system "T" permits, the usual electrical permit shall be required as provided for in Article III of this chapter.

The installation of electric heating units to provide supplemental heat for a given space will require an electric permit but not the "T" permit. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 207.120; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 14; 78-Or-257, § 22, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 19, 10-9-81; 88-Or-033, § 24, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 20, 2-10-95)

ARTICLE IX. ELEVATOR PERMIT FEES

91.610. Installation permits. The fee for permits for the installation, alteration, repair or replacement of elevators, dumbwaiters, escalators, moving walks, wheelchair lifts, vertical reciprocating conveyors and other similar vertical transportation devices shall be as set out in paragraph (A) below:

(A) One percent of the total valuation of the work with a maximum permit fee for any single device of ~~eight hundred twenty-five dollars (\$825.00)~~ eight hundred forty-two dollars (\$842.00).

(1) Installation of manlifts, restricted use (freight), and other limited use elevators shall require payment of a permit fee of ~~seventy-five dollars (\$75.00)~~ seventy-six dollars and fifty cents (\$76.50).

(B) Permits for temporary construction use of an elevator shall require payment of a permit fee of ~~seventy-five dollars (\$75.00)~~ seventy-six dollars and fifty cents (\$76.50).

(C) Annual registration fees:

(1) Power-driven passenger and freight elevator:

Up to 5 floors or levels served . . . \$25.00

6 to 10 floors or levels served . . . 30.00

11 to 20 floors or levels served . . . 35.00

21 or more floors or levels served . . . 40.00

The above fees may be reduced fifty (50) percent for elevators covered by a full service contract with an elevator construction company approved by the director of inspections. Further, the building owner or his agent shall furnish to the director of inspections at the time the reduced payment is remitted, certification that such a contract was in effect and

enclose test results and inspection reports that have been made. Any person submitting a certification as required above, which is improper or unacceptable, shall pay a service charge of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00); further, a similar service charge shall be made for all necessary correspondence originating from the department of inspections relating to such improper certification until the total charges become equal to the full annual registration fee. Failure to make payment for the annual registration fee will result in the department of inspections seeking further legal remedy.

- (2) Dumbwaiter . . . 20.00
- (3) Moving stairway (each individual) . . . 20.00
- (4) Docklift . . . 20.00
- (5) Hand-powered elevator . . . 20.00
- (6) Manlift . . . 20.00

Such annual registration shall expire on the first day of November of each year. If registration is not filed and/or the registration fees therefor are not paid on or before the fifteenth day of December of each year, the fees herein provided for such annual registration shall be doubled.

No annual registration fee as set out in paragraph (C) of this section shall be required of elevators located entirely within single-family dwelling units within the city. Inspection of elevators located in single-family dwellings shall be by appointment only and shall require a prepaid twenty-five dollar (\$25.00) inspection fee. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 208.020; Ord. of 9-26-75, § 2; 78-Or-257, § 23, 12-22-78; 81-Or-147, § 2, 6-12-81; 81-Or-251, § 20, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 13, 2-14-86; 86-Or-168, § 4, 7-25-86; 88-Or-033, § 25, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 21, 2-10-95)

ARTICLE X. PLASTER, STUCCO AND LATHING PERMIT FEES

91.680. Plastering or stucco work. The fee for each permit for plastering or stucco work shall be ~~twenty dollars (\$20.00)~~ twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each five hundred (500) square yards, or fraction thereof, of plastering or stucco work covered by such permit. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 209.020; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 2; 78-Or-257, § 25, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 21, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 14, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 26, 3-4-88; 89-Or-216, § 3, 11-9-89; 95-Or-016, § 22, 2-10-95)

91.685. Spray-on plaster finish for fire-proofing. Whenever spray-on plaster finish is required for fire-proofing ratings or purposes, the fee for such plastering shall be ~~thirty-five dollars (\$35.00)~~ forty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$43.75) for each five hundred (500) square yards, or fraction thereof, of spray-on plaster finish covered by such permit. (81-Or-251, § 21, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 15, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 27, 3-4-88; 89-Or-216, § 4, 11-9-89; 95-Or-016, § 23, 2-10-95)

91.690. Refinishing exterior stucco. The fee for each permit for refinishing exterior stucco shall be ~~twenty dollars (\$20.00)~~ twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each five hundred (500) square yards, or fraction thereof, of stucco refinishing covered by such permit. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 209.030; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 3; 78-Or-257, § 26, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 21, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 16, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 28, 3-4-88; 89-Or-216, § 5, 11-9-89; 95-Or-016, § 24, 2-10-95)

91.700. Lathing work. (a) For any permit for the installation of wood, wire and metal lath erected by nails and staples, to which plastic material is to be applied, the fee shall

be ~~twenty dollars (\$20.00)~~ twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each five hundred (500) square yards, or fraction thereof, of such lathing covered by such permit.

(b) For any permit for the installation of lathing and for the erection and installation of light iron construction or light iron partitions, erected for the purpose of receiving metal lath, to which plastic material is to be applied, the fee shall be ~~twenty dollars (\$20.00)~~ twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) for each five hundred (500) square yards, or fraction thereof, including the metal lath to be so installed and supported. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 209.040; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 4; 78-Or-257, § 27, 12-22-78; 81-Or-251, § 21, 10-9-81; 86-Or-023, § 17, 2-14-86; 88-Or-033, § 29, 3-4-88; 89-Or-216, § 6, 11-9-89; 95-Or-016, § 25, 2-10-95)

91.710. Fire-resistive or sound-rated gypsum. The fee for each permit for the installation of fire-resistive or sound-rated gypsum drywall systems shall be ~~eleven dollars (\$11.00)~~ thirteen dollars and seventy-five cents (\$13.75) for the first one thousand (1,000) square yards of surface area or fraction thereof, and ~~six dollars (\$6.00)~~ seven dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50) for each additional one thousand (1,000) square yards of surface area or fraction thereof. (89-Or-216, § 7, 11-9-89; 95-Or-016, § 26, 2-10-95)

ARTICLE XII. FIRE SUPPRESSION EQUIPMENT FEES

91.810. Sprinkler permits. For the installation of sprinkler equipment, the permit fee charged shall be made at the rate of ~~forty-eight dollars (\$48.00)~~ sixty dollars (\$60.00) for the first ten (10) sprinkler heads, or fraction thereof, plus ~~ten dollars (\$10.00)~~ twelve dollars and fifty cents (\$12.50) for each additional ten (10) sprinkler heads, or fraction thereof. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 211.020; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 28, 12-22-78; 80-Or-027, § 7, 2-29-80; 81-Or-251, § 23, 10-9-81; 83-Or-108, § 8, 5-13-83; 88-Or-033, § 33, 3-4-8; 95-Or-016, § 27, 2-10-95)

91.820. Standpipe permits. For the installation of any standpipe, the fee shall be ~~sixty four dollars (\$64.00)~~ eighty dollars (\$80.00) plus an additional fee of ~~seven dollars (\$7.00)~~ eight dollars and seventy-five cents (\$8.75) per floor served by such standpipe over five (5) floors. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 211.030; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 29, 12-22-78; 80-Or-027, § 8, 2-29-80; 81-Or-251, § 23, 10-9-81; 83-Or-108, § 9, 5-13-83; 88-Or-033, § 34, 3-4-88; 95-Or-016, § 28, 2-10-95)

91.830. Alteration permits. For the alteration, repair or extension of standpipe or sprinkler systems where the work is of such a nature that the permit charge cannot be determined by sections 91.810 and 91.820 above, the permit fee charge shall be made at the rate of ~~seventeen dollars (\$17.00)~~ twenty-one dollars and twenty-five cents (\$21.25) for each five hundred dollars (\$500.00), or fraction thereof, of the market value of such work. (Code 1960, As Amend., § 211.040; Ord. of 9-27-74, § 1; 78-Or-257, § 30, 12-22-78; 80-Or-027, § 9, 2-29-80; 81-Or-251, § 23, 10-9-81; 88-Or-033, § 35, 3-4-88)